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TREASURER’S REPORT
AlEHE

I have the pleasure of presenting the financial report
of Lingnan University for the year ended 30 June
2022:

Overview

The financial year under review was the last year of
the 2019-2022 funding triennium of the University
Grants Committee (UGC). The University has been
ranked third in the world for “Quality Education” for
the second consecutive year at the Times Higher
Education Impact Ranking 2022. This international
recognition reflects the continued commitment of
the University in delivering outstanding teaching
and learning.

The University has also obtained encouraging results
in bidding research projects from the Research
Grants Council. The University has broken records
both in the number of projects funded and in terms
of funding, achieving a record of 37 projects with a
total funding of $16.0 million. These results represent
an increase of nearly 70% compared with last year.

To achieve the strategic goal of setting up an
off-campus learning centre to serve the wider
community, the University has established an off-
campus learning hub at the Jao Tsung-I Academy
in Lai Chi Kok to enhance the teaching and learning
experience for academic staff and students. The off-
campus learning hub has a multimedia classroom,
and two hostel blocks offering about 70 residential
places for postgraduate students.
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Overall Operating Results and Financial
Position

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the University
recorded a total income of $934.8 million (2020/21:
$1,082.2 million), a decrease of $147.4 million or
14%. The overall decrease in income was mainly
attributable to the decline in Interest and Investment
Income of $288.5 million or 218%.

On the expenditure side, the University recorded an
increase of $58.0 million or 6% (2021/22: $1,009.6
million, 2020/21: $951.6 million).

As at 30 June 2022, the net assets of the University
stood at $1,865.4 million (2020/21: $1,941.4 million).

INCOME ANALYSIS
WA #T
$1,090.8 million* (10.908 {&7¢) *

49.4% Government Subventions

B BB &

* The amount excluded investment loss of $156.0 million.
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COMPARISON OF INCOME DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2021/2022 AND 2020/2021
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EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS
~ AT
$1,009.6 million (10.096 f&7T

© Premises and Related Expenses {6.2%
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Student and General Education Services 11.0%
BAR—RHE R

Management and General 9.5%
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H b B

Central Computing Facilities 4.8%
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COMPARISON OF EXPENDITURE DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2021/2022 AND 2020/2021
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Results by Segments DERELE
The University business can be broadly divided REBEBRES RMADE - IHEGERE
into two segments, namely UGC-Funded Activities BIRIEHESENETE  2021/22FERNED
and Non-UGC-Funded Activities, and their financial B EEMERIAINOT -

results for 2021/22 are highlighted as follows:

UGC-Funded Activities HEEZEEE)

The income derived from and expenditure spent on HESEPEHNWARRSZ 2556973
UGC-Funded Activities were $697.3 million (2020/21: 1& 70 (2020/21 : 6.82518 7T ) K 6.9271& JT
$682.5 million) and $692.7 million (2020/21: $688.2 (2020/21 : 6.8821E 7T ) * 1H B W A B975%
million) respectively, accounting for 75% (2020/21: (2020/21 : 63%) K 427 3 #69% (2020/21
63%) of the total income and 69% (2020/21: 72%) 72%) °

of the total expenditure of the University.



The increase of $14.8 million in income was mainly
due to the increase in Government Subventions and
Tuition Fee.

There was a slight increase in expenditure of $4.5
million, mainly on Premises and Related Expenses.

Capital and Alterations, Additions & Improvements

(AA&I) Projects

During the year, the UGC approved three new AA&I
projects with a total value of $61.9 million (2020/21:
$61.9 million) for various campus improvement
works. Total expenditure on the Capital and AA&I
Projects during the year was $36.7 million (2020/21:
$37.6 million) with all projects spending within their
respective budgets.

Non-UGC-Funded Activities

Lingnan Institute of Further Education (LIFE)

In 2021/22, the LIFE's associate degree
programmes had 244 (2020/21: 225) students while
its postgraduate diploma, degree, higher diploma,
diploma and diploma Yi Jin programmes had a
total of 842 (2020/21: 876) students. The two most
popular programmes remained to be the Higher
Diploma in Early Childhood Education which had an
intake of 120 (2020/21: 149) and the Higher Diploma
in Sports Coaching and Leadership which had an
intake of 71 (2020/21: 88).

Although LIFE recorded a drop in student number, it
achieved a surplus of $8.2 million for the year (2020/21
$1.9 million). The total income and expenditure of
LIFE were $72.9 million (2020/21: $74.7 million) and
$64.7 million (2020/21 $72.8 million) respectively,
accounting for 8% of the total income and 6% of the
total expenditure of the University. The improvement
in the financial performance was mainly due to
shifting the teaching duties from full-time staff to
part-time staff.
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EEARLIFERZ2 A ABABFT T - B2F AR
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BRI AR 32 5 Bl & 7,290 & 7T (2020/21
74708 JT ) 16,4708 7T (2020/21 : 7,280
Bir) WARBRKAKSY% MAELRAT H K
6% ° MR KEFER B AGRE S T
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Self-financed Programmes

This sub-segment encompasses all the taught
postgraduate programmes and self-financed
undergraduate programmes of the University,
which had a total of 1,588 (2020/21: 829) full-
time-equivalent students. During the year, the
University introduced nine Master’s programmes,
one Doctor of Business Administration programme
and two undergraduate programmes. In 2021/22,
Master of Accountancy and Master of Social
Science in Organisation Psychology & Education
Management were the most popular programmes,
both programmes had the same student intake of
121 (2020/21: 80 and 74 respectively). The income
generated by this sub-segment was $258.6 million
(2020/21: $133.1 million) and the expenditure
incurred was $172.1 million (2020/21: $102.5
million), accounting for 28% of the total income and
17% of the total expenditure of the University. This
sub-segment recorded a surplus of $86.5 million
(2020/21: $30.6 million) for the year.

Donations

The total income for the year recorded under this
sub-segment was $8.2 million (2020/21: $67.7
million) while the amount utilized during the year
for supporting various activities was $55.5 million
(2020/21: $42.4 million). The decline in income was
mainly due to the turnaround of the Interest and
Investment Income from $19.2 million in 2020/21 to
negative $26.7 million in 2021/22. This sub-segment
recorded a deficit of $47.3 million (2020/21: a surplus
of $25.3 million) for the year. The University is very
grateful to all the donors, which included alumni,
friends and various organizations for their continued
generous financial support.
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Other Activities

This sub-segment mainly consists of the student
hostels, investment activities of the non-UGC funds
and other ancillary services. In 2021/22, both the
equities and bonds markets have suffered from
substantial corrections, leading to a significant drop
of investment income from a gain of $106.5 million
in 2020/21 to a loss of $133.8 million in 2021/22, a
decline of $240.3 million or -226%. As at 30 June
2022, the aggregate market value of the portfolios
managed by investment managers was $732.2
million (2020/21: $867.4 million), representing an
annual return of -15.6% (2020/21: 13.7%). The
market value of the portfolio managed by the
University on that date was $124.5 million (2020/21:
$153.2 million), a return of -11.6% (2020/21: 8.4%)
while the Hang Seng Index recorded a loss of 24.2%
in the same period.

Outlook

The University has formulated its strategic plan
for 2022-28, which will be reviewed on a rolling
basis every three years so that the University can
respond to the ever-changing environment in a
timely manner. Under the guidance of the strategic
plan, the University will continue to develop new
postgraduate programmes to serve specific societal
needs. With the increased student number, the
University has to deploy resources to set up another
learning centre in town to house the increased
student number.

The success of the Research Assessment Exercise
(RAE) 2020 did improve the recurrent funding of the
University. The increased funding will be allocated
to support high-impact research to prepare for the
RAE 2026.
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Although the University has to face many challenges
in the years to come, such as the uncertainties
brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the turbulent
investment markets, and the unfavourable
demographic trend in the local community, with the
dedication and commitment of all Lingnanians, the
University will be able to turn the challenges into
opportunities and continue to thrive globally.

Katherine Cheung Marn-kay

Treasurer
Hong Kong, 17 October 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE COUNCIL OF LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

(established under the Lingnan University Ordinance)

B BB AERNEGHRS

(AR5 SR R BRI K L)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lingnan
University (the “University”) set out on pages 14 to 94,
which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of income
and expenditure, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in fund balances
and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
University as at 30 June 2022, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Lingnan University Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the University
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

R

BRAEEVNENRE 1424 EHERAEN
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i
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BT EFAABR T - —FA=+HANES
MRARBEZALFENMBRERRDSR
£ WERR(EEASGRIDNEEREL S

ERHNER

HPEREFESAHASRHA(E BTN
ERIVEITRET - RAEZFER TAENE
TEEARRE [RHETBF UK AL
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(PRI - BB RERASR - WE BT
AR EMBRERET - TAHEE - TP
ERMENRED R AR AR FINER
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Other information included in the
Financial Report

The Council of the University is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Financial Report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council of the
University for the financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Lingnan University
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Council of the University either intends
to liquidate the University or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Council of the University is assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities
for overseeing the University’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 20
of the Lingnan University Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council of the University.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the
Council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the University’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the University to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

o TREESTHBERNES - ARTEE
METZF - BXIFFRHERAZRNHAR
EHEBERERREBR

s HERESHRANGIRENRELER
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EERFHEEFENBREENEATEE
M RMA R Em RBNFELE
RRNELERRE MRRMBR/FEE
RPMEEN - AA L EEZBEN RS IR
BEAETEMBERERTDHOEBERE - &
ERBNRETR  RIRMEERRIFEE
REBR - HAINEREERN LA RS
BIEFTESEFHERE - AT - REFIE
KN A REE B E AR TR ER S -
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B BRERE URPERERRETHPER
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 October 2022

BPERBEZZESRRER @ SARMEN
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

W REZE2022F6 A30 HEFE

Notes 2022 2021
BeE HK$ BT HKS 77T
(Note HizE 4) (Note HMizE 4)
Income WA
Government Subventions BB E 538,994,753 528,642,660
Tuition, Programmes and E2E . HER 477,629,580 349,294,842
Other Fees Hiug &
Interest and Investment FERKZRE 7 (155,981,184) 132,566,925
(Loss)/Income Z=DRON
Donations and Benefactions BRK R 34,966,999 48,624,324
Auxiliary Services B R 33,056,940 17,072,615
Other Income HAbUg A 10 6,170,802 5,970,372
934,837,890 1,082,171,738
Expenditure * i
Learning and Research B R
Instruction and Research HERIFE 486,616,067 463,292,134
Library BlEE 38,763,432 35,904,334
Central Computing Facilities PRENEE 48,514,397 50,551,006
Other Academic Services H A 2B i7 AR % 63,119,806 55,941,172
Institutional Support HiEE
Management and General BER—RIE 95,559,974 97,735,257
Premises and Related Expenses REREREXH 163,920,922 151,892,551
Student and General Education BER—REE 110,920,650 93,058,163
Services R
Other Activities HAtEE 2,216,737 3,267,563
11 1,009,631,985 951,642,180
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year BEE (B4 ) BER (74,794,095) 130,529,558




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
SPHINEREZE2022F6 B30 HEE

Restricted Funds (Deficit)/Surplus
Other Funds (Deficit)/Surplus
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year

Other Comprehensive (Loss)/Income
which will not be reclassified to
the Statement of Income and
Expenditure in Subsequent Periods

Changes in Fair Value of Equity
Investments Designated at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive (Loss)/

Income for the Year

Total Comprehensive (Loss)/

Income for the Year

Transfers (from)/to:
Restricted Funds
Other Funds

(518 ) Wz

Notes
FEE
SIREIES (B ) Bk
HtES (B4 ) Bk
BEE (B4 ) Bk

ARBEETEEHRIIA
WX RWEMEE

FFAZHEWGER 2 ER 12

RENDIABEZS

AEEHMEME

(58 ) Wz

REERRE

(518 ) W=

BR(A)E:
ZREES
HtpE %

12
13
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2022 2021

HK$ &7t HKS %7t
(69,364,861) 678,362
(5,429,234) 129,851,196
(74,794,095) 130,529,558
(1,198,402) 576,275
(1,198,402) 576,275
(75,992,497) 131,105,833
(70,563,263) 1,254,637
(5,429,234) 129,851,196
(75,992,497) 131,105,833
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

BTk 3k 202246 A 30 H

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Right-of-use Assets

Equity Investments Designated at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive

Income
Prepayments

Current Assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
and Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accruals
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Income

Lease Liabilities within One Year

Net Current Assets

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loan Repayable after One Year
- Secured
Lease Liabilities More than One Year

Deferred Capital Fund

Net Assets

FRBEE
RE - RIERBEM
EREEE

EERUQRBETA
2HWHERZEDZRE

MR

REBEE

LR R EEFARSER

HNEMEE
FEURERSR ~ TRASERFX
K&
REMARR=1EA

BER—-FHNEREK

RERREEEY

REEE
SRR N RIZE A
EERFEE
IEFEWA
—FANEERE

FRBEE
REERRBEE
FRBEE
EERFEE
—FREENVER
- BEA
RR—FHNHERE

FLEEXES

FEE

Notes

(i

14
15
16

17

16

17

18 (a)

18 (b)

19
20
22
15

20
21

15

23

2022
HKS 7T

1,207,914,284
8,729,083
6,243,718

2,640,440

2021
HK$ &7t

1,195,178,358
345,603
7,442,120

3,192,620

1,225,527,525

1,206,158,701

867,062,334

24,461,557

1,246,190,587

15,155,108

1,006,441,761

20,279,378

1,085,346,774

22,068,080

2,152,869,586

2,134,135,993

267,472,858 209,638,213
59,208,655 60,142,325
278,627,992 246,727,915
1,250,079 321,520
606,559,584 516,829,973

1,546,310,002

1,617,306,020

2,771,837,527 2,823,464,721
13,090,306 11,537,330
27,431,326 27,431,326
7,613,745 26,972
48,135,377 38,995,628
858,263,471 843,037,917

1,865,438,679

1,941,431,176
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
(Continued)

SRR 2022456 A30H (4&)

Notes 2022 2021
FEE HK$ % HK$ 7T
Operational Funds HEES
Restricted Funds ZREIES 12 630,362,456 635,806,702
UGC Funds HESES 13 338,022,037 343,241,932
Other Reserves HAhf#E 13 897,054,186 962,382,542
Total Funds BmES 1,865,438,679 1,941,431,176
Andrew Yao Cho-fai, JP Bt(E#E Katherine Cheung Marn-kay &£
Chairman of the Council K& & & Treasurer A&
Leonard Cheng Kwok-hon, JP E5[E )% lan Woo Chun-tung #A#& 5
President X & Comptroller 75K
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

HEREREE2022F6 A30HEE

Cash Flows from Operating Activities EEIHNRERE
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year REE (EAL ) BER
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of Property, Plant and RE - RERSHZ
Equipment meE
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets FRAEEEZITE
Transfer to Deferred Capital Fund ERRLEERES
Interest and Investment Loss/(Income) FEREZRERSE/(WA)
Interest Expense in respect of Lease HEESENHEBRIEX Y
Liabilities
Net Loss on Disposal of ltems of EERESXRER

Property, Plant and Equipment BMIER FEE

BRI ARSR

Increase in Accounts Receivable,

Prepayments and Deposits ERRRRES
Increase in Provision for EinEERANEE
Employee Benefits
Increase in Accounts Payable T INE(T BRFA R
and Accruals EIREA
Increase in Deferred Income I IE AT N
Cash Flows generated from Operations EEMBEERE
Interest Element of Lease Liabilities HESENFR
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities & EFEHNFHRERAE
Cash Flows from Investing Activities RETENREERE
Purchases of Investments BAKRE

BERERERBFMER

Purchases of Items of

Property, Plant and Equipment

Proceeds from Disposal of ltems of EERERER
Property, Plant and Equipment BEMIE B ERK

Increase in Time Deposits, EmREHER
with Original Maturity of more than R=EEAEER—FMN
Three Months but less than One Year EEBTFRR

Interest Received FIEUA

Dividend Received BREWA

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities REZBNFHRLSHRHEE

Notes 2022 2021
MIEE HK$ &7t HKS %7t
(74,794,095) 130,529,558

14 67,531,315 66,570,367
15 567,660 319,017
15,225,554 31,367,977

7 155,981,184 (132,566,925)
11.1 21,156 6,411
11.1 6,037,704 5,044,972
170,570,478 101,271,377
(2,230,767) (1,364,893)

619,306 3,568,318

57,834,645 41,049,223

31,900,077 59,752,183
258,693,739 204,276,208

(21,156) (6,411)

258,672,583 204,269,797
(27,000,424) (442,927,891)

14 (86,401,085) (80,952,202)
96,140 23,000

(160,843,813) (65,315,097)
4,378,367 14,682,731

4,621,068 4,353,166

(265,149,747)

(570,136,293)
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)
HEeREREZE2022F6 A30BFE (8)

Notes 2022 2021
ByaE HK$ & 7T HKS$ BT
Cash Flows from a Financing Activity AEEFHNRERE
Principal Portion of Lease Payment HEAREBIEE 33 (435,808) (317,589)
Net Cash Outflow from a Financing Activity BEZBHNFHEESREE (435,808) (317,589)
Net Decrease in HeRESEEY (6,912,972)  (366,184,085)
Cash and Cash Equivalents WA FEE
Cash and Cash Equivalents FPYzBEE 22,068,080 388,252,165
at the Beginning of the Year RESEEY
Cash and Cash Equivalents ERZBES
at the End of the Year RESZEY 18 (b) 15,155,108 22,068,080
Analysis of the Balances of HeRESEEY
Cash and Cash Equivalents: EERD AT
Cash and Bank Balances RERWITHER 18 (b) 14,067,052 10,580,959
Non-pledged Time Deposits with FRREHAER={EA W 18 (b) 1,088,056 11,487,121
Original Maturity of less than IR EHFR
Three Months
15,155,108 22,068,080
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

SR AN 4y AA B4 >
B ERBEREE2022F6 A0HFE
Restricted Other
Funds Funds Total
ZRIES HpES et
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HKS %7t
(Note Fffz 12) (Note Fiz 13)
Balance as at 1 July 2020 2020 7 A1 H 582,233,704 1,228,091,639 1,810,325,343
£33
Total Comprehensive AEEHAEHE 1,254,637 129,851,196 131,105,833
Income for the Year g
Inter-fund Transfer HEE&EFR 52,318,361 (52,318,361) -
Balance as at 30 June 2021 2021 %6 A 30 H
iheR 635,806,702 1,305,624,474 1,941,431,176
Balance as at 1 June 2021 20216 A1 H 635,806,702 1,305,624,474 1,941,431,176
F503
Total Comprehensive AEELEE (70,563,263) (5,429,234) (75,992,497)
Loss for the Year K58
Inter-fund Transfer HeAR 65,119,017 (65,119,017) -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 2022 f£6 A 30 H
F=30o 630,362,456 1,235,076,223 1,865,438,679




General Information

Lingnan University, formerly Lingnan College,
is the only liberal arts university in the territory,
with the longest established tradition among
the local institutions of higher education.
The University was incorporated on 30 July
1999 following the enactment of the Lingnan
University Ordinance. lIts history, however,
dates back to 1888, when its forerunner, the
prestigious Lingnan University in Guangzhou,
China, was founded.

Lingnan University is committed to the
provision of quality education distinguished
by the best liberal arts traditions. It adopts a
whole-person approach to education which
enables its students to think, judge, care and,
ultimately, act responsibly in the changing
circumstances of Hong Kong, the region and
the world.

The principal place of operation is Tuen Mun,
Hong Kong.

The University founded Lingnan Institute for
Sustainable Development Limited, a company
limited by guarantee without share capital,
on 22 September 2020 to bid for the ex-
North Kowloon Magistracy Building from the
Government.

Particulars of the University’s subsidiary is as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS R I ot

1. —ER

EMAL . BRTEm Sk - A M —
MIEHARE  RAMREERRF  F
BIEABEL - REN 19994 7 B30 B
FaEm ARSI MK - EFE LB
£1888F  TERAMNEIMNERANEAR
SIEFHER o

EHASRTHARHEUNERERNE
BHE - REUTRAHE | BRE - BB
SEMESE A% BT KKERK
B R R R E A E R R IRES
BT

RENTBLEMEMUNEBLM

20209 A22H  EBEAEBRIL T &
MARBERRERERAA - AERAE
ERARAR - AERBRASEAEA
BEELHIABTRAE -

ZHI B AR ZFHBWT

Lingnan Institute for Sustainable Development Limited

ERARHEERERARAT]

Place of incorporation/registration and business Hong Kong
ERliPAVAEESIP S 3: k- B
Percentage of equity interest attributable to the

University 100%

RABIGBA ST DL

Principal activity

B

Education but was dormant during the year

B BEFNEEERY
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2.1

2.2

The results of the subsidiary have not been
consolidated into the University’s financial
statements, owing to the financial insignificance
to the University.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the accounting policies generally adopted by
higher educational institutions in Hong Kong as
expressed in the Statement of Recommended
Accounting Practice (“SORP”) for University
Grants Committee (“UGC”) Funded Institutions
in Hong Kong.

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which have been measured at fair value,
and are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The University has adopted the following
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The nature and the impact of the revised
HKFRS are as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues
not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an

2.1

2.2

PR ke PR a8 2 ) ) B 745 48 A0 Ko B 755 51K 0 48
MEARSBREMSMIEE  KREER
ZRIFERR AR A SR A L B A R RO RE
TSR

i i EE B

REMBREDBEBEYBRELE
Al B G EARREB(ATHRER
[BRUBREEL ) ARBBAEHE
BPHZBEMENNEEHERRHKF
RN EI N EZSTERAN S
REEMARE -

AL EMBRRTIBRBE L RANE LR
2 ERERUNAREEFAZEKE
RZERRERARABEF AR E
MEREEANEETE - AMBR
KBRS -

HEE RN 2

RERAFE W BHRENA
TRIEFTNRBHBRE LR :

IRER AR LA

X

BV EHREERNE IR - BAESFHER
F£395 - BEMBHREERETH
AU RELNFE 4T RBEBIBRELE
A 16 SRIEFT A

FREAERE - 20

RISETN B BM B REEN 2 HEE R
ZRIGNT ¢

BEMBRESERE W - HEGHER
F395  BAEAMBRELNETH &
R E RIS 45E R BB E L
AIZE165RIER] A B AR A M R AL



existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence
of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are
dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide
atemporary relief to entities from having to meet
the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation
of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect
of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 and shall be applied retrospectively,
but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information. The amendments did
not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the University.

S —mE A R ([ &R FE]) B
B RIBEBIIARRERIEATEN
BMENEE - ZEF] A RBERER
FE AR ERMEERBECZEY
REMEETEENEEEITSERE
- AIEHERNEXEHAARS/HE
ERBEZEAE: fIiReXEEHEL
ERFEEERNFEFMERESIE - BETE
BHRERENTELELLSE LERE
BB EATM SRR o 1IN ZFB
AR EREEREFRTHESE
ERFRETEFRRENBRT  BRAREH
FEEMIEE Rtk o BEHBAESL
WE AR R BB RBR B BRE
ERIZIORH—MRATERE  UFtER
T SR 9 PR B B UM o i) LB M) R 4 4
ERRBRAKE D - ZFEBRIANINE
BERERVEMESUERHAINEK-
EHRERAHTERENAEBHERR
12 i [ Bz 4B B B o0 PR AR 2R 24 18 A A1 %
SIS ERBRE - REREERERT
% BEHEEWMEEBRER T -
AN RFIERI AN E BB BRERRE
SNVERL - A B SmREREERT
BAEEENETHERNSRITARR
R EIEREAEE - ZFEF] AR 2021
F1A1BIABRRNFERBER
Wik FEBER  BEERABAETYIEK
BE e MHARSEIIABTEHAKE
LI BMFTER I ERTE -
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The University has not applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective, and potentially
relevant to the University’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates’

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the University
is described below:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The University
is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments on the University’s accounting
policy disclosures.

2.3 BEMEREMZEBUFZRS

2R

5 AT RE SR 2 RS ¥R R ARRE 2 ¥ AT &%
RETNFAMBRE LR - E8M
HE R AR AR TR AR LR B ERAN

BERGETERISE 15 R BB H S 2R
BB RNEF25R2MERT
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B ERERE 8 ZIEF]
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FEHfE

ARTERERN AR BRH HREE
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R GFHERIE 13 2 BT T EERA B
BERCERBE [E2GBER] M3k
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Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. The distinction
is important, because changes in accounting
estimates are applied prospectively to future
transactions and other future events, but
changes in accounting policies are generally
applied retrospectively to past transactions
and other past events as well as the current
period. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities
use measurement techniques and inputs
to develop accounting
amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies
and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on
the University’s financial statements.

estimates. The

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the University and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of a replaced part is derecognized. All
other repairs and maintenance expenditures
are recognized as expenses in the statement
of income and expenditure during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

EE RTS8 EITRE T R

HEENGHBREENES o ZE5
REE - BARHAHBE RN
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Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings, Structures and Fittings:

20 - 50 years

Leasehold Improvements:

7 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter

Furniture and Equipment:

3 -5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure on disposal.
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Construction-in-progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Construction-in-progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the
University reviews the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognized no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized as an expense
immediately.
Where an impairment
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as
income immediately.

loss subsequently

Leases

The University assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.
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University as a lessee

The University applies a single recognition
and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases. The University
recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Education Centre:

6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers
to the University by the end of the lease
term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease
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payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the University and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the University
exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the University uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change
to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The University applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of education centre (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(©)

MTTRE(E R AR A BT TR L
HERFER  ARAKLEHEENST
K o NEURIESE AR r] S E
A H IR BB BN SR S Sl R A9
HRAfR) AR /RS o

AHEMEENRNRER - AREER
SHAREAEE - A KEEAEE
s A EIR BB BN R E - 15
AR HERBESEAEINRER
THBHIEE - HRARIBETF AL
HERK » 1o - fFEER] - M
% s  MENRES (MEHEHK
HMEREBE S| A RKBENKES)
NBEHBEEEMNRERNNGEE
B QB TEHERENREE

REHEMKEEEERE

AEA—HEPLWEHEERERE
A EmRe (B e MK B R
FEA12E AT - BB EE
BEEREMNEE) -

A ENEETREEARER
AR R -

2021/22 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT * BA#3RE 29



30

University as a lessor

When the University acts as a lessor, it
classifies at lease inception (or when there is a
lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the University does not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components,
the University allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of income and expenditure due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted
for as finance leases.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
University’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of accountsreceivable
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the University has
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applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component,
the University initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the University has
applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 July 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding.

The University’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade date,
that is, the date that the University commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent Measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial

assets depends on their classification as
follows:
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Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt
Instruments)

The University measures financial assets
at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

e Thefinancial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure when the
asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income (Equity
Investments)

Upon initial recognition, the University can elect
to classify irrevocably its equity investments
as equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when
they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets
are never recycled to the statement of income
and expenditure. Dividends are recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the
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economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the University and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the University benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial designated upon
recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces,
an accounting mismatch.

assets initial

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure.
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This category includes equity investments
which the University had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the University and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The University derecognizes a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The University recognizes an allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the University expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General Approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
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within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the University assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment,
the University compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

has increased

The University considers a financial asset
in default when contractual payments are
1 year past due. However, in certain cases,
the University may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the University is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the University.
A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs
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Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified Approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or when
the University applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the University applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the University does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The University
has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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The University’s financial liabilities include
accounts and other payables, the amount due
to UGC and secured loans payable.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
including accounts payables and accruals,
the amount due to UGC and secured loans
payable are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost,
using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the amortization process.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
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an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and
demand deposits with bank. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at bank, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
University expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

Revenue from the provision of programmes
is recognized over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the University.

Residence Halls Fee

Residence halls fee are recognized when
the services are rendered.

Chinese Medicine Clinic Fee

Chinese medicine clinic fee are recognized

when the services are rendered.
Block Grants and Non-accountable
Supplementary Grants
Block grants and non-accountable
supplementary grants from UGC are recognized
as income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred plus any such other
grants, which are received in excess of the
related expenses incurred, but transferred to
General and Development Reserve Fund in the
reporting period. Subventions received before
the occurrence of the related revenue and
capital expenditure and are in excess of the
transfers to General and Development Reserve
Fund are recognized as Deferred Income.
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Other Subventions

Other subventions, which are earmarked
for specific purposes, are recognized as
income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred in the reporting period.
Subventions received before the occurrence of
the related revenue and capital expenditure are
recognized as Deferred Income.

Subventions Spent on Capital Expenditure

Subventions spent on capital expenditure
are treated as Deferred Capital Fund and
recognized as income over the useful lives of
the related assets when the assets are put into
use, to the extent of the related depreciation
incurred for that period.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Donations

Donations designated for financing capital
expenditure are treated as Deferred Income
when received; any amount spent on capital
expenditure is transferred to Deferred Capital
Fund and recognized as income over the useful
lives of the related assets when the assets
are put in use, to the extent of the related
depreciation incurred for that period.

Other donations in cash of which the unspent
balance need not be refunded are recognized
as income when received or receivable from
the donors.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive payment has been established.
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Rental Income

Rental income is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a
payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the University transfers the related goods or
delivers the services. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the University
transfers the control of the related goods or
services to the customer.

Employee Benefits

Employee Leave Pay

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Mandatory Provident Fund

The University operates a defined contribution
Mandatory  Provident  Fund  retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for its employees. Contributions are
made based on percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of income and expenditure as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the University
in an independently administered fund. The
University’s employer mandatory contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, while voluntary
contributions vest with them according to the
vesting schedule of the Scheme.
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Foreign Currencies

The University determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of the University are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded
using the exchange rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. All differences
are taken to the statement of income and
expenditure. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Reserves
Endowment Donations

Endowment Donations represent donations
which are being held intact in perpetuity and
only the interest income therefrom can be
utilized for the general development of the
University and designated purposes.
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General and Development Reserve Fund

General and Development Reserve Fund
(“GDRF”) represents unspent funds of UGC
recurrent grants from one funding period
(usually a triennium) to the next. The balance
of GDRF at the end of a funding period which
can be carried over to the next funding period
should not exceed 20% of the University’s
approved recurrent grants for that funding
period. Should the balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period exceed the ceiling
allowed for that funding period, the excess
should be transferred to Amount Refundable
of Unspent Recurrent Grants in the account of
Amount Due to UGC pending the recovery by
the UGC.

Operations Reserves
Operations Reserves comprise the funds
generated from the self-financing programmes

and projects of the University.

Deferred Capital Fund

Deferred Capital Fund represents the
Government  subventions and
development donations spent in the purchase
of property, plant and equipment or capital
projects which are subject to depreciation.
Deferred Capital Fund will be reduced to the
same extent as and when the depreciation
of the related property, plant and equipment
is charged to the statement of income and
expenditure.
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Deferred Income

Funds earmarked for specific purposes,
of which the unspent balance should be
refunded, including Government subventions,
donations and benefactions, and interest and
investment income arising from these funds,
are not recorded as income if the related
expenditure has not yet been incurred during
the year. Funds of such nature received but not
yet recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure are recorded as Deferred Income.

Capital Management

The various restricted and other funds of
the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations, investment income, income
generated from self-financing activities and
other designated funds. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant
and funding conditions, where applicable,
and the University’s investment and financial
management guidelines and procedures. The
objective is to safeguard the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
optimal reserves to provide tertiary education
and to support the future development of the
University.

The University manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments in accordance with
changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. During the
year ended 30 June 2022, the University’s
overall capital management policy remained
unchanged from prior years.
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5. Government Subventions

BB

Subventions from UGC
Block Grants and
Non-accountable Supplementary Grants
Supplementary Adjustments
Research Matching Grants

Earmarked Grants

Research

Housing-related Expenses other than
Home Financing Scheme (“HFS”)

Knowledge Transfer

Targeted Taught Postgraduate
Programmes Fellowships Scheme

Enhancing Campus Security

Government’s Job Creation Scheme
under Anti-epidemic Fund 2.0

Student Support Services in response to
the COVID-19 Pandemic

Strategic Development of Virtual Teaching

and Learning
Others

Rates and Government Rent Refunded

Capital Grants and AA&I Block Allocation

Grants from Government Agencies
Rates and Government Rent Refunded
Others
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2022 2021

HK$ % HK$ & 7T
422,669,070 428,895,637
23,561,000 20,980,000
4,624,780 4,204,547
450,854,850 454,080,184
10,962,647 6,333,414
849,144 887,739
1,101,542 1,402,071
2,069,925 1,418,800
2,604,135 4,594,890
3,271,712 1,758,666
2,055,660 803,031
6,441,521 377,541
1,196,026 959,044
30,652,312 18,535,196
7,632,624 7,875,840
36,694,633 37,628,230
525,734,419 518,119,450
792,400 865,600
12,467,934 9,657,610
13,260,334 10,523,210
538,994,753 528,642,660
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6. Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

28 RERHMWE

UGC-Funded Programmes HEGERRE
Tuition Fees BE

Programme and Other Fees RERHEMKRE
Non UGC-Funded Programmes FHESEPHRE
Tuition Fees =8

Programme and Other Income R HE A A

2022 2021

HK$ BT HKS$ BT
147,085,996 141,337,201
3,225,664 3,562,343
150,311,660 144,899,544
317,599,173 198,111,298
9,718,747 6,284,000
327,317,920 204,395,298
477,629,580 349,294,842

Notes

1. During the year, tuition, programmes and other fees were
recognized when the services were rendered over time,
i.e. the performance obligations were satisfied. Payments
were generally due before the commencement of the
terms/courses. The University’s geographical market was

in Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount of tuition, programmes and
other fees recognized, that had been included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period, was

HK$102.90 million (2021: HK$49.90 million).
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7. Interest and Investment (Loss)/Income

MERKRE (BE) /WA

Interest Income

Dividend Income

Net Realized and Unrealized (Loss)/Gain on
Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss

8. Donations and Benefactions
BRI EEE

Capital Projects (Note)

Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries
Donations for Research Activities (Note)
Others (Note)

Note:

During the year, the cash donation received from the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust was HK$11.48 million

(2021: HK$31.04 million).
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2022 2021

HKS &7 HKS #5T
5,945,458 11,363,961
4,621,068 4,417,466
(166,547,710) 116,785,498
(155,981,184) 132,566,925
2022 2021

HKS 5T HKS 7T
7,435,067 5,788,891
7,736,714 10,484,345
11,272,394 25,268,509
8,522,824 7,082,579
34,966,999 48,624,324

AREEREEESREFTESNRESENE1,148
BT (2021 ¢ 3,104 BETT) ©

49



9. Auxiliary Services

5 Bh BR 7%
Residence Halls BE
Car Park {Z815
Catering Services BERHE
Rental Income HEWA
Rental Contribution from Staff BB EHES
Sports Complex iRt
Chinese Medicine Clinic eSO RN
Notes

1. During the year, residence halls income was recognized
when the services were rendered over time, i.e. the
performance obligations were satisfied. Payments were
generally due before the commencement of the terms.
Chinese medicine clinic income was collected and
recognized at a point in time after the services were
rendered. The University’s geographical market was in
Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount residence halls income
recognized, that had been included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period was HK$1.87 million
(2021: HK$1.38 million).

10. Other Income

Haug A
Contract Research HEMR
Survey and Service Income FAERRBUA
Miscellaneous HEIFUA

50

2022 2021

HK$ BT HK$ &TT
30,747,715 15,464,177
485,440 282,058
322,984 18,952
421,600 597,800
329,966 328,937
190,450 41,886
558,785 338,805
33,056,940 17,072,615

FisE -

150 RABRBRHERENOEM(BIHETEOR
B)EERBESLA - LERBEESMMABNX
i o B S AT IR AR (1 7 8 AR 745 5 LA R B g 32

RENRIFTIHEES °

2.FER KEBMRTI1S7TEB THEE WA (2021 ¢
13888 7T) » MLESHEEAFINANEE -

2022 2021
HKS & 7T HK$ &7t
3,889,637 4,015,229
1,238,904 1,514,900
1,042,261 440,243
6,170,802 5,970,372




11. Expenditure
X

Learning and Research
Instruction and Research
Library

Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and
Related Expenses
Student and General
Education Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure 2021/2022

2021/2022 FEHATH

Total Expenditure 2020/2021

2020/2021 FEH#ALTH

Staff Costs Operating
and Benefits Expenses 2022 2021
=] &  Depreciation Total Total
FEF X e o e
HK$ &t HK$ &t HKS E T HK$ &7t HKS &7t
Bk R
HERAR 421,324,142 61,876,801 3415124 486,616,067 463,292,134
EEHE 17,325,344 20,822,427 615,661 38,763,432 35,904,334
HREFERE 28,528,794 14,080,193 5,905,410 48,514,397 50,551,006
HA BT AR 53,564,960 9,354,784 200,062 63,119,806 55,941,172
520,743,240 106,134,205 10,136,257 637,013,702 605,688,646
e E
EER-MEE 77415171 17,985,748 159,055 95,559,974 97,735,257
RER 12,456,906 95,496,734 55,967,282 163,920,922 151,892,551
Vil p
BER-R 35,657,838 74,627,261 635,551 110,920,650 93,058,163
HE R
HAtES 638,630 944,937 633,170 2,216,737 3,267,563
126,168,545 189,054,680 57,395,058 372,618,283 345,953,534
(Note HffzE 11.1)
646,911,785 295,188,885 67,531,315  1,009,631,985
(Note FffzE 11.2)
632,913,018 252,158,795 66,570,367

(Note KfzE 11.2)
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BExEEBEXHOM

Management and General

Auditor’'s Remuneration
Furniture and Equipment
Insurance - General

Legal and Professional Fees
Office and Publicity Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance

Staff Recruitment

Staff Development and Training

Premises and Related Expenses

Furniture and Equipment
Government Rent and Rates
Insurance - Property
Minor Works
Legal and Professional Fees
Office Expenses
Premises and Facility Rental
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities, Cleaning, Communication,
Security and Management Services
Net Loss on Disposal of Property,
Plant and Equipment
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Interest Expense in respect
of Lease Liabilities

11.1 Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses

EER-RXE

2 Gl

REN =M

— MR iR
EEREXRBER
MAEREEH
HEERRE

BT 1R

ST

REREBEXH

REREM
BT A % 2= 8
MERR
NETRR
EEREERKER
MAELZH
EEREEEE
HIERRE
ARk - BFE - B -
REREERHE
BRERERERBMIER
FER
FREESEZINE
HESENEEFEXE

2022 2021

HK$ BT HK$ &TT
639,000 607,000
138,183 311,224
1,380,053 1,271,639
810,112 590,828
11,778,133 11,765,699
815,516 1,165,446
2,161,609 1,066,713
263,142 594,612
17,985,748 17,373,161
1,276,304 1,862,186
8,425,024 8,741,440
1,688,017 2,152,298
2,851,824 2,214,646
1,491,506 1,176,507
389,080 198,341
2,561,807 1,653,358
18,847,988 12,833,706
51,338,664 49,394,217
6,037,704 5,044,972
567,660 319,017
21,156 6,411
95,496,734 85,597,099
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11.1 Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses (continued)

BExEEBEHD#H (&)

Student and General Education Services

Ceremonies, Assembly and Promotions

Careers and Counselling Services

Furniture and Equipment

Student Exchange

Office Expenses

Residence Hall Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

Student Activities, Study Tour and
Grants to Student Societies

Sports Facilities

Scholarship and Financial Aid

Staff Development and Training

Student Medical and Dental Scheme

Other Activities
Catering Services
Survey and Service
Transportation Service

BAER -RBBERE
Hig - KEREE
PR AR

HRAKSEM
BER
MAEZH
BEXH
HERRE

BUEED  HEER
HBHB LB

BERIE
i3

BT

BEBEENRITRMRIETE

HitEE
BEIR
AERRH
Em RS

11.2 Analysis of Staff Costs and Benefits

Ul S FraNEF 2

Salaries and Wages
Gratuities

MPF Contributions
Other Benefits

HFeRIE
Ximif <&
WA HR
HAbiER

B
B RBERY

2022 2021
HKS$ %t HKS %7t
2,681,903 3,038,799

244,440 416,266
85,762 167,099
3,530,885 78,128
679,404 182,597
28,178,868 23,779,774
1,449,330 1,558,429
8,906,672 5,452,041
1,175,687 965,649
26,574,340 19,083,952
10,297 52,650
1,109,673 1,475,312
74,627,261 57,150,696
391,767 1,305,143
474,937 212,150
78,233 61,550
944,937 1,578,843
189,054,680 161,699,799
2022 2021

HK$ &7t HKS %7t
559,757,940 543,474,451
38,961,890 39,303,932
25,468,044 25,117,190
22,723,911 25,017,445
646,911,785 632,913,018
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12. Restricted Funds
SREES

Balance as at 1.7.2020 &4

Transfer from/(to) Statement of
Comprehensive Income

BE/(Z)2EHKRER

Inter-fund Transfer

HEER

Balance as at 30.6.2021 %5&k

Balance as at 1.7.2021 %58k

Transfer from/(to) Statement of
Comprehensive Income

BE/(Z)2EHKRER

Inter-fund Transfer

HEER

Balance as at 30.6.2022 #5&k

Investment Designated Funds
Revaluation BERRES

Endowment Reserve Donations / Endowment
Donations RE Funds Funds Total
BAREH B BR/ES gxES @3t
HKS /&7t HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7t HKS /&7t HK$ &t
132,432,939 6,865,345 409,007,662 33,927,758 582,233,704
2,500,000 576,275 (1,821,638) - 1,254,637
(80,000) - 52,398,361 - 52,318,361
134,852,939 7,441,620 459,584,385 33,927,758 635,806,702
134,852,939 7,441,620 459,584,385 33,927,758 635,806,702
300,000 (1,198,402) (69,664,861) - (70,563,263)
- - 65,119,017 - 65,119,017
135,152,939 6,243,218 455,038,541 33,927,758 630,362,456




13. Other Funds

HittE&
UGC Funds Other Reserves
YyEgES Hitbfdfe
Unallocated
Research Non-
General and Unallocated Matching Designated
Development Matching Grants Operations Donations and
Reserve Fund Grants AOBARE Reserves Benefactions
—RRERE AABAR i) &= FRERRE Total
BEEs SIS Bye B BRRER @3t
HKS$ BT HKS$ &7 HKS$ B 7 HKS$ B 7 HKS$ &7 HK$ & 7T
Balance as at 1.7.2020 #58% 185,217,305 173,571,723 8,740,968 636,685,811 223,875,832 1,228,091,639
Transfer from Statement of 4,561,053 237,975 4,227,776 115,202,858 5,621,534 129,851,196
Comprehensive Income
ER2HEKER
Inter-fund Transfer 4,740,265 (25,318,881) (12,736,252) 3,697,691 (22,701,184) (52,318,361)
EeAR
Balance as at 30.6.2021 £&# 194,518,623 148,490,817 232,492 755,586,360 206,796,182 1,305,624,474
Balance as at 1.7.2021 £58% 194,518,623 148,490,817 232,492 755,586,360 206,796,182 1,305,624,474
Transfer from/(to) Statement of 20,312,734 128,850 4,627,058 (27,410,411) (3,087,465) (5,429,234)
Comprehensive Income
BR/(F)2EKEER
Inter-fund Transfer 6,335,726 (31,999,483) (4,624,780) (9,715,398) (25,115,082) (65,119,017)
EeAR
Balance as at 30.6.2022 £gh 221,167,083 116,620,184 234,770 718,460,551 178,593,635 1,235,076,223

As at 30 June 2022, the total balance of UGC Funds
derived from General and Development Reserve
Fund, Unallocated Matching Grants and Unallocated
Research Matching Grants was HK$338.0 million
(2021: HK$343.2 million).

As at 30 June 2022, the total balance of Other
Reserves derived from Operations Reserves and
Non-Designated Donations and Benefactions was
HK$897.1 million (2021: HK$962.4 million).

R2022F6 A30H - B—MEEBRHEEES
MADERGESESERHESHS R
B85 3.380 (B8 T (2021 : 3.432 1B/ TT) ©

5A2022¢6H3OE mEERENIEET
BERAR ,\,E.,ZHEXZﬁ@f%ﬁA!%ﬁ%ﬁa.gm
BB (2021 : 9.624 B8 7T) °
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

RE - RIERBEH

Cost &

At1July 2021 A 2021 7B 1 H
Additions &

Disposals &

Transfers &

At 30 June 2022 74 2022 6 6 A 30 B

Accumulated Depreciation ER&ITE
At1July2021 22021 F7A1H
Depreciation Provided during the Year
AERGHRITE

Disposals E&

At 30 June 2022 4 2022 £ 6 A 30 H

Cost B A&

At1July2020 7420207 A1 H
Additions &

Disposals &

Transfers &%

At 30 June 2021 74 2021 6 A 30 H

Accumulated Depreciation & E
At1July2020 420207 A1 H
Depreciation Provided during the Year
AERNGHRITE

Disposals &

At 30 June 2021 4 2021 £ 6 A 30 A

At 30 June 2022 A 2022 £ 6 A 30 A

At 30 June 2021 74 2021 £ 6 A 30 A

Buildings,
Structures & Leasehold
Fittings  Improvements  Construction- Furniture &

RE - BER HEEE in-Progress Equipment Total
EhE RRIR ERIE  BARSEM @it
HK$ &t HKS #E T HKS #E T HKS #E T HKS BT

1,702,729,326 339,578,509 36,605,415 166,292,459  2,245,205,709
9,964,977 5,159,469 58,026,918 13,249,721 86,401,085

(12,267,669) - - (6,951,346) (19,219,015)
65,331,926 - (65,331,926) - -
1,765,758,560 344,737,978 29,300,407 172,590,834  2,312,387,779
593,757,382 310,579,733 - 145,690,236  1,050,027,351
42,088,637 9,673,682 - 15,768,996 67,531,315
(6,133,825) - - (6,951,346) (13,085,171)
629,712,194 320,253,415 - 154,507,886  1,104,473,495
1,659,834,129 336,694,916 29,329,261 155,435,105 2,181,293,411
7,337,551 2,883,593 54,942,722 15,788,336 80,952,202
(12,108,922) - - (4,930,982) (17,039,904)
47,666,568 - (47,666,568) - -
1,702,729,326 339,578,509 36,605,415 166,292,459  2,245,205,709
561,782,380 297,090,203 - 136,556,333 995,428,916
39,015,952 13,489,530 - 14,064,885 66,570,367
(7,040,950) - - (4,930,982) (11,971,932)
593,757,382 310,579,733 - 145,690,236  1,050,027,351
1,136,046,366 24,484,563 29,300,407 18,082,948 1,207,914,284
1,108,971,944 28,998,776 36,605,415 20,602,223  1,195,178,358




15. Leases

HE

The University holds a lease, which consists of a
fixed monthly payment throughout the lease term
and a variable payment in accordance with the
actual number of classrooms and hours consumed
by the University, in respect of an Education Centre
for hosting its programmes. The lease shall expire
on 31 July 2022, and the University will not renew
the lease. The University has engaged in another
lease for another premises on 1 May 2022 for the
same purpose, and the term of the lease is 6 years
without extension option. The lease consists of a
fixed monthly payment throughout the first 3 years
and the fixed monthly payment shall be adjusted
upward by 3% in the subsequent 3 years.

(a) Right-of-use Assets
The carrying amounts of the University’s right-of-

use assets and the movements during the year are
as follows:

As at 1 July H7HA1H
Addition 7E
Depreciation e

As at 30 June M6 A 30H

REFE —HRERLAHAREPRERE R
BHAONEES S - KREBATRERBHATA
ST —ETSRmMAET - mZBIH D BIREXR
BERFEANAEHEMFECRT N - L8
FR2022F 7 A3 BRI - KEFIT2EHEZ
H75 o BN REBERKR2022F5A1HAR—
BEMMERAS & - EANT - EEHR
R ZHAONI—FABARENR - BEE
=FNEABRENRAELAIY -

(a) EAEERE
RNEE FREEEZRABEREEEHN
T

Education Centre and Total

#HBh O KA

2022 2021
HKS$ 83T HKS 58T
345,603 664,620
8,951,140 -
(567,660) (319,017)
8,729,083 345,603
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15. Leases (continued)

HE (&)
(b) Lease Liabilities (b)y HEEE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the AEE HEBGE REeELEEFHAT
movements during the year are as follows:
2022 2021
HKS &t HK$ &7t
As at 1 July n7A1H 348,492 666,081
Addition weE 8,951,140 -
Accretion of Interest recognized during the year AN FER 1 RER 21,156 6,411
Payments (NEA (456,964) (324,000)
As at 30 June »6HA30H 8,863,824 348,492
Analysed into: par; b=
Current Portion mEERD 1,250,079 321,520
Non-current Portion ERENEBD 7,613,745 26,972




\’\7—7777
15. Leases (continued)
HE (&)
(c) Amounts recognized in Income and Expenditure (c) B ERARNKZ R 2258
in relation to Leases
2022 2021
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t
Interest Expense in respect of Lease Liabilities HE S E/EREFI S H 21,156 6,411
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets FREEEZITE 567,660 319,017
Variable Lease Payments not included inthe ~ A:TE2HEEERKRE 639,114 548,743
Measurement of Lease Liabilities BENTEEENK
(included in Expenditure) (BERXZER)
Total Amount recognized in Income AR R B
and Expenditure 1,227,930 874,171
(d) Variable Lease Payments (d) PIEEER K
The University’s variable and fixed lease payments RERZHEEFEHEENKRINWOT
are set out below:
2022 2021
Total Total
HEt st
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t
As at 30 June
M6 A30H
Fixed Payments EE K 456,964 324,000
Variable Payments FEIIR 639,114 548,743
1,096,078 872,743
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16. Investments

r&E

Equity Investments Designated at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income
Unlisted Equity Investments

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss
Listed Equity Investments in Hong Kong
Listed Investment Funds
Unlisted Investment Funds

The fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period is presented in

Note 37.

BERBUAABENAZE

Wik 2 BmRE
FLEMRERKRE

A fEE A&
NEmERE
LhmgmkE 78
LHEESRE
FLEMEERE

2022 2021

HK$ BT HK$ &TT
6,243,718 7,442,120
6,243,718 7,442,120
21,198,665 22,647,882
102,275,920 102,831,920
743,587,749 880,961,959
867,062,334 1,006,441,761
873,306,052 1,013,883,881

HOERMIEND

SEED AT



17. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

B - AARRRES

2022 2021
HK$ &7t HKS %7t
Accounts Receivable FEURBRFR 8,442 827 5,732,019
Other Receivables Hih eI BRFR 560,433 420,662
Prepayments FETBRFX 16,493,941 16,355,373
Rental and Sundry Deposits HERMEZS 1,604,796 963,944
27,101,997 23,471,998
Less: Non-current Portion W 3ERENERMD (2,640,440) (3,192,620)
Current Portion BN 24,461,557 20,279,378
Accounts receivable and other receivables are net of R ER A B fb fE U BR X FOBR S 1B B - 1Y
loss allowance. The ageing analysis of the accounts MR EEHNEBERFHERERSITAT -
receivable at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2022 2021
HKS #E 7T HK$ % 7T
Current REHR 4,152,839 3,075,453
Less than One Month Past Due BHISEA—E B 1,166,058 808,745
One to Three Months Past Due wE—EAZ=@A 345,152 846,259
More than Three Months but not more BHRN=EAETRER—F 2,047,565 691,244
than One Year Past Due
More than One Year Past Due BHRA—F 731,213 310,318
8,442,827 5,732,019
Loss allowance recognized in respect of accounts JEW AR 2 B HERRRE B RENT -
receivable is as follows:
2022 2021
HK$ &7t HKS %7t
Balance as at 30 June 6 A 30 B&ser 3,987,184 3,987,184
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17. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (continued)

FEWARR - AR ZRE ()

An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e. by service type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, the University
would consider to write off the accounts receivable
if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

The information below is about the credit risk
exposure on the accounts receivable using a

provision matrix:

As at 30 June 2022

MR BRABREREETTRENTEAER
HEREX - BEXDERURE D ENE
UEFOEKETE - At B RBREA K IE
BR - EEREANRRBAISNERBES
IR~ B MR REER A IRTRR o —ARIM
5 RUSRF A RS — F R TN ARERR
B KREEERTLAMIE -

RABBERET ErEURIRRHE SRR ER
WHI

M20229F6 A30H

Past Due B8
More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over1
Current Month 1to 3 Months RR=M@AE Year Total
R ER-ER -EAZ=EA TRA-E ER—% @3t
Expected Credit Loss Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 85% 32%
BHERBAE
Gross Carrying Amount (HK$) 4,152,839 1,166,058 345,152 2,047,565 4,718,397 12,430,011
SREAE (B)
Expected Credit Losses (HK$) - - 3,987,184 3,987,184

BHERRX (B)
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17. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (continued)

B - AARRRES ()

As at 30 June 2021 K202146 A30H
Past Due B
More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over1
Current Month 1to 3 Months RA=M@AE Year Total
REIH ER—BEA —BAZZEA RRA-F ER—% @3t
Expected Credit Loss Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 93% 41%
BHERRAE
Gross Carrying Amount (HK$) 3,075,453 808,745 846,259 691,244 4,297,502 9,719,203
SREAE (B
Expected Credit Losses (HK$) - 3,987,184 3,987,184

RHEREX (BX)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented
rental deposits, utility deposits and sundry debtors.
Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default of comparable companies with
published credit ratings. As at 30 June 2022, the
University assessed the impact of loss allowance
for impairment of deposits and other receivables
was insignificant.

None of the above deposits and other receivables is
either past due or impaired and there was no recent
history of default.

e hEMERFIEFEEHERS  KEE
e RMEEEA - EA - IREEAMHE
EFIRM AR BL B ELAELLE - AR
BT ETRED T - R20224F6 A30H -
REBEFERe REMERFIE, BEREA
TEK o

bR S e E A R MAURR TR R 48R g A O R (B B
3T HAD AR R AC R
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18. Time Deposits and Cash and Cash Equivalents

EHFRRRERREESEY

(@) Time Deposits
Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
more than Three Months but
less than One Year
Classified as Current Assets
Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
less than Three Months
Classified as Current Assets - Cash
and Cash Equivalents (Note 18 (b))

Total

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
less than Three Months (Note 18 (a))

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) EME

REMARNR=MEA
BER—FHEREK
IIRRBERE

RRHBER=EA
HEBRIF
NARBEE-BHER
REZEEY (KEE 18(b))

Ny
cE
ik
—+

(b) RERREZED

REAENR=EA
HEHER (MIEE 18(a)

BERIRITHEER

RERREEEY

2022
HK$ & 7T

1,246,190,587

1,088,056

2021
HKS$ BT

1,085,346,774

11,487,121

1,247,278,643

1,096,833,895

1,088,056 11,487,121
14,067,052 10,580,959
15,155,108 22,068,080




19. Accounts Payable and Accruals
EAERFRTERER
2022 2021
HK$ /&7t HK$ &t
Accounts Payable FE(TERRX 15,357,326 11,643,556
Accruals and Provisions TEIRB ANREE 32,389,758 30,596,073
Retentions Payable EAinEe 7,674,960 18,306,366
and Deposits Received REWEZE
Contract Liabilities (Note 19 (a)) EHEAE (KMEE 19(a)) 172,201,355 106,926,952
Amount Due to UGC ExHEE 39,849,459 42,165,266
267,472,858 209,638,213
As at 1 July 2020
2022 2021 20207 H 1A
HKS$ &7t HK$ /&7t HK$ & T
Note 19 (a) MizE 19(a)
Contract Liabilities =N
Tuition Fees 28 160,527,303 100,938,199 48,437,227
Hostel Fees BE 2,091,886 1,873,109 1,383,750
Graduation Deposits SHHERS 3,997,244 3,246,904 2,923,300
Other Course Fees Hib:REER 5,584,922 868,740 387,869
172,201,355 106,926,952 53,132,146

Contract liabilities include tuition fees, hostel fees,
graduation deposit and other course fees received
in advance from students. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from students at the
end of the year in relation to the tuition fees. The
increase in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly
due to the increase in short-term advances received
from students at the end of the year in relation to the
tuition fees.

AHEEEEBNEANESE  FE  2EH
IS MNEMREBR - 2022FMEHEE
BINYEBRRFERBE 2 HERSEBFIE
BN 2021 FHEHNBEEMDNIEEHRTF
REAE 753G HRTEUR B & FRIEIE N -
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20. Provision for Employee Benefits

EBEENEE

Staff Costs:

Salaries and Wages

Gratuities

Other Employee Benefits

Retirement Benefit
Scheme Contributions

Payable:
Within One Year
After One Year

21. Loan - Secured

BX- A

BB
FERTE
i
HittlgSEF
RARBRETEIER

FEASHAIR -
— %7y
— L%

As at 30 June 2022, the outstanding Loan balance

would be repayable as follows:

Repayable:
Within One Year

More than One Year, but not
exceeding Two Years

More than Two Years, but not
exceeding Five Years

After Five Years

66

AREN
—FR

—FEMFAR

MFERFR

REFEE

2022 2021
HKS$ 77T HK$ & 7T
31,220,311 29,100,134
40,760,324 42,315,754
195,421 204,206
122,905 59,561
72,298,961 71,679,655
59,208,655 60,142,325
13,090,306 11,537,330
72,298,961 71,679,655

R20229F6 A30H © R&E

Moo
2022 2021
HK$ & 7T HK$ 87T
- 6,857,834
20,573,492 20,573,492
6,857,834 B
27,431,326 27,431,326
27,431,326 27,431,326




21. Loan - Secured (continued)

EX-BEA (&)

For the purpose of constructing a permanent
premises for the Community College for the
provision of self-financed sub-degree programmes,
the University obtained an interest free loan of
HK$205.7 million (“the Loan”), repayable in 10 equal
annual instalments, from the Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“the Lender”) in 2002. In September
2009, the repayment period of the Loan was
extended to 20 years. Pursuant to the extension, the
first 10 years remained interest free, and thereafter,
a “no-gain-no-loss” (“NGNL”) interest rate to be
determined by the Lender annually will be charged
on the outstanding Loan amount. The NGNL
interest rate for 2022 was at 1.270% (2021: 1.106%
to 1.270%) per annum.

In consideration of the Loan, all incomes generated
from the courses for which the Loan was granted
have been charged to the Lender by way of a first
fixed charge. As a further security to the Loan, by
way of a first floating charge, all assets and rights,
both present and future, of the University have been
assigned to the Lender.

In February 2022, the University accepted the
lender’s offer of a further interest free deferral of loan
repayment for two years, under which, the original
due date of the 17th instalment will be postponed
from 2 April 2023 to 2 April 2025. As a result, no
amount is repayable until 2024/25.

As at 30 June 2022, the outstanding Loan balance
amounted to HK$27.4 million (2021: HK$27.4
million).

BT EERE B AR AR S RFERE 246
UWTHEBRERRE  KBR2002F 1 K
RN EEE("ERAT) G 2057 @B TRE
ER(CER) 2 10FFHEIE - 52009 F
98 ZEFMEFIHLERZE20F - BRI
K& B10FKRRARE g §FEZEXR
@R RBASNME - FIEBSGFHRERA
[ TERAE I RANASE  R20224F » %[ T
BETE IRFIR BF B 1.270%(2021 : 1.106%
£1.270%) °

BTBEBER  ABREEZKARENEE
HRRIERVRT B WA - DA% — BElE 3 7 =R
FRERRA ° AN RERBRIERRKNEE
s YUEFHERTABREER
A o

R2022F 2 REBEX TERARERN
REBREHMEERLTH - BEZLH
FITHMER BB H2023F4 A2HHESR
20254 A28 - Hilt - KEEFEELMRK
T H % 2024/25 °

R2022F 6 A30H © REEME N AE2,740
BB (2021 : 2,740 8 7T) ©
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23. Deferred Capital Fund

Balance as at 1.7.2020 &84

Capital Fund Earned (Note 22)
REVEARES (M3 22)
Capital Fund Released
BHERES

Balance as at 30.6.2021 &84

Balance as at 1.7.2021 &84

Capital Fund Earned (Note 22)
REEAES (K 22)
Capital Fund Released
BHERES

Balance as at 30.6.2022 &&4

Capital
Grants and
AA & | Block
Allocation Campus
Earmarked Grants HEyE Development
Block EERERbS MEEBR Donations
Grants Research Others HEIR RERRE Total
BRwEhe g Hits BERR BR st
HKS BT HKS BT HKS BT HKS T HKS &7t HKS$ &7
44,371,158 105,026 600,329,111 166,864,645 811,669,940
10,238,341 61,207 99,600 61,702,206 15,865,092 87,966,446
(14,867,511) (12,241) (64373)  (35,865453) (5788,891)  (56,508,469)
39,741,988 48,966 140,253 626,165,864 176,940,846 843,037,917
39,741,988 48,966 140,253 626,165,864 176,940,846 843,037,917
17,886,888 1,989,433 53,148,241 560,736 73,585,298
(15,606,803) (12,241) (399,637)  (34,951,996) (7,389,067)  (58,359,744)
42,022,073 36,725 1,730,049 644,362,109 170,112,515 858,263,471
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24. Remuneration of the Higher Paid Staff
B & ¥ 208 & i

The numbers of the higher paid staff falling in the
following bands of annual equivalent remuneration

were:

HK$ &7T

1,800,001 - 1,950,000
1,950,001 - 2,100,000
2,100,001 - 2,250,000
2,250,001 - 2,400,000
2,400,001 - 2,550,000
2,550,001 - 2,700,000
2,700,001 - 2,850,000
2,850,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,150,000
3,150,001 - 3,300,000
3,300,001 - 3,450,000
3,450,001 - 3,600,000
3,600,001 - 3,750,000
3,750,001 - 3,900,000
3,900,001 - 4,050,000
4,050,001 - 4,200,000
4,200,001 - 4,350,000
4,350,001 - 4,500,000
4,500,001 - 4,650,000
4,650,001 - 4,800,000
4,800,001 - 4,950,000
4,950,001 - 5,100,000
5,100,001 - 5,250,000
5,250,001 - 5,400,000
5,400,001 - 5,550,000
5,550,001 - 5,700,000
5,700,001 - 5,850,000

DR T IS EEFEF AR R
8A

8

s

2022 2021
16 16
19 17

4 6
2 3
2 4
1 -
2 2
2 1
1 -
- 1
1 -
1 -
- 1
- 1
1 -
52 52
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25. Matching Grants and Matched Donations Movement Analysis

EAHBERCERYEREDH O

2022 2021
UGC-funded Operations UGC-funded Operations
YESEHEE YESEYLEE
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
[TE gk ERRHER [TEaE kA EEREHER
HKS 87T HKS /87T HKS 87T HK$ &7t
Balance as at 1 July 7 A1 A& 267,870,468 252,744,612 279,942,279 256,940,698
Income WA
Interest and Investment MEREERA 539,318 2,328,296 979,867 3,034,138
Income
268,409,786 255,072,908 280,922,146 259,974,836
Expenditure i
Teaching and Research HERMREH 3,814,530 424,706 2,562,408 5,059,042
Enhancement
Internationalization and B RBERR - 154,076 (12,000) 30,311
Student Exchange SEED
Activities
Scholarships & Prizes RESREM 11,311,068 2,552,268 9,188,723 998,789
Bursaries pEe - 108,013 - 230,548
Student Development BARRE 1,725,021 1,094,869 1,132,068 751,970
Others Hity 646,860 3,524 180,479 159,564
17,497,479 4,337,456 13,051,678 7,230,224

Balance as at 30 June (Note) 6 B 30 B&EER (HizE) 250,912,307

250,735,452 267,870,468 252,744,612

Note: No donation, that could be matched, was received for
self-financing operations since the extension of the Matching
Grant Scheme to non-UGC-funded activities in August 2012.
As the UGC-funded operations of the University were at
degree or above level, no expenditures were incurred for the
activities of sub-degree level. The balance has not included
the accumulated net unrealized loss on investments of
HK$9.47 million (2020/21: accumulated net unrealized gain
HK$6.04 million) as it is not a free balance at the disposal of
the University.

MizE : B20124F 8 A @ MBI TSR EIEH
AR KEWRAWREMEmEEEESHIELNT
REBH - ARNHESEYEDNREHEE TSN
FUAE - B ERAERARETBMAREUTHE
B ARAETHEHFERAREMBZA;FAETRF
B8 - ZEEIEAFT47TE BT (202021« B2 ARE
IRRUNES 604 B TT) W TNE S AR ©
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26. Research Matching Grants and Matched Donations / Research Grants /
Research Contracts Movement Analysis

MERBEDEREEREER/ HRAEBE/AES

Balance as at 1 July

Income

Donations/Research
Grants/Research
Contracts Received

Interest Income

Expenditure

Research Project(s)

Research Equipment

Setting up of

Research Facilities
Research Activities

for Students
Others

Balance as at 30 June

Note: No donation / research grant / research contract, that
could be matched, was received for self-financing operation

during the year.

7R 1 B4

LON

BRI AEEBE/
MREHEA

FIEWA

!
HREE
WsREett
BRI
BAREE

Hith

6 A 30 AR

WBE DT
2022 2021
UGC-funded Operations UGC-funded Operations
BEEEHEE BEEEHEE
Matched Matched
Donations/ Donations/

Research Grants/

Research

Research Contracts
Matching EREEIER/
Grants MEHES/

Research Grants/

Research

Research Contracts
Matching EEEEIER/
Grants MEHEE/

[TEsgiluE MEEH EE S RSN
HK$ B 7T HK$ & T HK$ BT HK$ &t
54,051,479 59,650,096 57,182,478 58,339,884
4,624,780 9,249,561 4,204,547 8,464,119
230,488 281,392 472,520 488,948
4,855,268 9,530,953 4,677,067 8,953,067
9,040,724 8,652,820 7,341,092 6,290,438
82,282 23,983 274,969 690,259
18,247 20,930 16,863 16,863
665,178 444,064 44 575 514,709
266,789 189,491 130,567 130,586
10,073,220 9,331,288 7,808,066 7,642,855
48,833,527 59,849,761 54,051,479 59,650,096

BisE : RAEE - KB R B REE[ M E EESE
B A RSB/ AR B e /AR E L -
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27. Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (“the Scheme”)

Er8s BB aky®meE ("5rE")

The University has complied with all the requirements RELDRBITE BN A GG - BB HE
of the Scheme. In accordance with the disclosure Zk o nBREME  BEREBHREER
requirements of the Scheme, the details of the B KT HIR BT

matching grants, matched donations of the Scheme
and their related income and expenditure, if any, are
summarized as follows:

2022 2021
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
[EEagE Bk SEREER [REagE kA EEREER
HKS &7t HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HKS &7t
Balance as at 1 July 7 A1 B&ERH - - 55,210 -
Net Amount Refunded 2 REFHIE
Grants Refunded REHSE - - (55,210) -
- - (55,210) -
Balance as at 30 June 6 A 30 B#&eR - - - -
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28. Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

EFEERIHRREREE ("EBIETE")

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the related income and expenditure
of the Subsidy Scheme, if any, are summarized as

follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2020

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Grants Refunded

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Grants Refunded

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

2020 £ 7 A 1 B4R

S WCFRE

[BLEH:1: kS

REHEE

ME T REWA

X

TEENRA

2021 F£ 6 A 30 H&EER

2021 £ 7 B 1 BEgR

BYFRIR

[SL0¢:: )0k

REFE &

ME 1 RERA

X

TEENRA

2022 £ 6 B 30 H#EER

KEBEET A RINFA R o BRAE
BIBBER - 108 I A Y B AR R
SRR T -

Lingnan
University
BEAE
HKS$ BT

1,283,885

1,712,527
(1,328,546)
12,150

396,131

91,610

91,610
1,588,406

1,588,406

2,899,970
(1,589,399)
8,365

1,318,936

1,344,940

1,344,940

1,562,402

Lingnan Institute of
Further Education
BRAE
HREEZR

HK$ 77T

203,982

200,000
(200,000)
1,381
1,381

205,363

205,363

100,000
(205,485)
692
(104,793)

100,570

Total
Mt
HK$ /&t

1,487,867

1,912,527
(1,528,546)
13,531

397,512

91,610

91,610
1,793,769

1,793,769

2,999,970
(1,794,884)
9,057

1,214,143

1,344,940

1,344,940

1,662,972



29. Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for

AN

Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)
RARBEELB2E [ -F—BIXRETE ("&EBEE")

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the related income and expenditure
of the Subsidy Scheme, if any, are summarized as

follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Net Amount Received
Grants Received
Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Grants Refunded

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

2020 F£7 B 1 BEEsR

2 WOFIE

B2 E 1k

REFE S

FE I REWA

X

TEENRA

2021 F 6 B 30 B&eR

2021 £ 7 B 1 BHEEs

2 WOFRR

[BLEH1:

REIHEE

ME T REWA

X i

TEENRAR

2022 % 6 A 30 HAEER

1,064,483

RECEITEBNRTSINFTB IRIT - =R
WAL EBNEEIZ

BORBEEL
¥ IR

Lingnan Institute of

Lingnan Further Education
University HEEAE
BERAZ SEEBSER
HKS$ & 7T HK$ 7T
654,643 204,427
821,275 200,000
(656,316) (200,000)
6,176 1,382
171,135 1,382
825,778 205,809
825,778 205,809
1,192,623 100,000
(826,294) (205,931)
5,376 692
371,705 (105,239)
133,000 -
133,000 -

100,570

) ;Hr
[ ON

Total
w5
HKS %7t

859,070

1,021,275
(856,316)
7,558

172,517

1,031,587

1,031,587

1,292,623
(1,032,225)
6,068

266,466

133,000

133,000

1,165,053
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30. Non-Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for
Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

RABRBEELBE [ -F K I XRER & ("EBETE")

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the related income and expenditure
of the Subsidy Scheme, if any, are summarized as

follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Net Amount Received
Grants Received
Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Grants Refunded

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

2020 £ 7 B 1 BHEsR

S WOFFIE

[BL 61k

ROMEIE

ME T REWA

X

EEISEN

2021 % 6 B 30 H#E&R

2021 F£7 A 1 B&R

EWFRIE

B2 E1:

REFE &

ME T REWA

S

EENRA

2022 £ 6 B 30 H#&EgR

RECETEBRTEINFTB IRt - RE BT
SIMEEEK > MB LB BRI Z AR A K
SRR AT

Lingnan
University
HEREAZ
HK$ & 7T

249,227

389,679
(249,864)
2,590

142,405

8,400
8,400

383,232

383,232

864,247
(383,472)
2,787

483,562

255,600

255,600

611,194

Lingnan Institute of
Further Education
BEEAE
BFREEZER

HKS$ BT

203,001

200,000
(200,000)
1,381
1,381

204,382

204,382

100,000
(204,504)
692
(103,812)

100,570

Total
MEt
HKS %t

452,228

589,679
(449,864)
3,971

143,786

8,400
8,400

587,614

587,614

964,247
(587,976)
3,479

379,750

255,600

255,600

711,764



31. Non-Means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

AN

RAREEE 2L RMERERE ("EBETE)

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the related income and expenditure
of the Subsidy Scheme, if any, are summarized as

follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2020

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Grants Refunded

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Balance as at 1 July 2021

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Grants Refunded

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2022

2020 £ 7 B 1 BHEs

S WRFRIR

B2 Gk

ROMHEIE

ME T REWA

X

TEERA

2021 % 6 A 30 HALER

2021 £ 7 B 1 B4R

2 WOFIE

B2 61k

ROEIE

ME T REWA

S

TEENRAR

2022 £ 6 B 30 B&tR

KBEEITABE BINFA I - RIEABE
BIBBER - 108 LA B2 AR
SIBERT

Lingnan
University
BEEAE

HK$ 7&7T

114,618

150,000
(114,911)
905

35,994

92,700

92,700
57,912

57,912

245,810
(59,902)
629

186,537

90,450

90,450

153,999
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Lingnan Institute of
Further Education
BEAE
BREEER

HK$ & 7T

76,572

111,642
(75,000)

611

37,253

113,825

113,825

75,000
(113,893)
495

(38,398)

75,427

Total

B5

HK$ & 7T

191,190

261,642
(189,911)
1,516

73,247

92,700

92,700
171,737

171,737

320,810
(173,795)
1,124

148,139

90,450

90,450

229,426
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32. ECF - Hong Kong Ocean Environmental Pioneer Academy Project No. EE&CA
No. 2656 (“the Funded Project”)
RRES - BB EFRALEFTEIEE 4% EE&CA No. 2656 (“&B1EHE")

The University has complied with all the requirements REEEITEIEB A RN - ‘RREBNIE
of the Funded Project. In accordance with the BMEEEK - A ERIEE 2 EEKRAKR
disclosure requirements of the Funded Project, the BB

details of the related income and expenditure of the
Funded Project, if any, are summarized as follows:

HKS %7
Balance as at 1 July 2021 2021 7 B 1 B4 -

Net Amount Received 2 UWRFRIE
Grants Received SRS 628,040
Interest Income FEWA 1,451
629,491

Expenditure ZH

Project Costs 18 B AR 230,644
230,644

Balance as at 30 June 2022 2022 % 6 A 30 H&EER 398,847



33. Note to the Statement of Cash Flows

REnERME

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

At 1 July 2021

Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Interest Expense
Portion of Lease Payment
Addition

Other Changes

Interest paid classified as Operating
Cash Flows

At 30 June 2022

At 1 July 2020

Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Interest Expense
Portion of Lease Payment

Other Changes
Interest paid classified as Operating

Cash Flows

At 30 June 2021

2021 £ 7 B 1 BEs

MERTRENEE
MEXZH
BoHEENK
BE

HihEs
FIANEERESREN
FIE A+
2022 % 6 A 30 H&EER
2020 £ 7 B 1 BH&sR
RERESRENEE
FIE
o EERF
Hih& s
JIANBERESREN

MBS

2021 ¥ 6 A 30 B#5ER

2021/22 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT ° Bi##keE

Loan-Secured

(a) HBMETBMELENABZHIR

Lease Liabilities

B - BEHF HE8E
HK$ &7t HKS$ %7t
27,431,326 348,492
- 21,156

- (435,808)

- 8,951,140

- (21,156)
27,431,326 8,863,824
27,431,326 666,081
- 6,411

- (317,589)

- (6,411)
27,431,326 348,492
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33. Note to the Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

REMBRMEE (&)

(b) Total Cash Outflow for Leases (b) HENELRERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HEMBRERETABRSRERNOT ¢

statement of cash flows is as follows:

2022 2021
HKS$ &7t HK$ &7t
Within Operating Activites EEEE 660,270 555,154
Within Financing Activites REEE 435,808 317,589
1,096,078 872,743
34. Capital Commitments
EARAIE
2022 2021
HKS$ &7t HK$ %t
Works contracted, but not completed IREENERET 275,536,000 62,333,000
The capital commitments represent the estimated FiERETRIEEEMEMBEE RNELRE
remaining balance of the contract sum for the works HEFARBREEAMAZERTI D TES
of the capital and AA&I projects not yet certified HIBREE o

completed at the end of the reporting period.



35. Financial Instruments by Category

SRMTESE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
As at 30 June 2022

Financial Assets

THEE

Equity Investments Designated $8EBNAAREE

at Fair Value through Other (T AZEWRER
Comprehensive Income ZRERRE
Financial Assets at Fair Value LA REEFT A
through Profit or Loss B RNEHERE
Financial Assets included in & AFEWBRTR
Accounts Receivable, BAERREZSH
Prepayments and Deposits ~ £REEE

Time Deposits with Original ~ REIH AR =1EA
Maturity of more than Three ~ {BEER—5#)
Months but less than One THER
Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents B &RIBEZEEY

MK AEEH

R 2022F6 A30H

BRI ANKREENT

Financial Financial
Assets at Fair Assets at
Value through Fair Value
Profit or through Other Financial
Loss - Held for ~ Comprehensive Assets at
Trading Income Amortized
URAAEE URAAEE Cost
FFABZ & A LA 8 R A
HEREE - 2EkEKZ FEZER Total
BEEE SREE BE @t
HKS 87T HKS 7T HKS 87T HKS &7t
- 6,243,718 - 6,243,718
867,062,334 - - 867,062,334
- - 10,608,056 10,608,056
- - 1,246,190,587 1,246,190,587
- - 15,155,108 15,155,108
867,062,334 6,243,718 1,271,953,751 2,145,259,803
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35. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

SRTITAESE (&)
As at 30 June 2022

Financial Liabilities

TRAE

Secured Loan

Lease Liabilities

Financial Liabilities included in
Accounts Payable and Accruals

7202296 A30H

Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost

USSR AT EZ

EHaE

HKS &7t

BIRBER 27,431,326

HEAE 8,863,824

SFAEMRRRTERERAN 95,271,503
s@mas

131,566,653



35. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

SRIEDHE(E)
As at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets

TREE

Equity Investments Designated 18E&A L EE

at Fair Value through Other 3T AZHEWER
Comprehensive Income ZRERRE
Financial Assets at Fair Value A2 R EEFTA
through Profit or Loss WX RNEHEE
Financial Assets included in & AFEUERSR »
Accounts Receivable, ANERRIREH
Prepayments and Deposits ~ £FEE

Time Deposits with Original ~ REHERKR=1EA
Maturity of more than Three BER—FH
Months but less than One THER
Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents BE&RIREZEY

F2202146 30 H

Financial Financial
Assets at Fair Assets at
Value through Fair Value
Profit or through Other Financial
Loss - Held for ~ Comprehensive Assets at
Trading Income Amortized
BAREE LA REE Cost
PN ST A DA 86 R A
HEMEE - 2EKERZ ATEZER Total
BEEE SREE aE st
HK$ 7T HK$ &7t HKS$ &7t HK$ & 7T
- 7,442,120 - 7,442,120
1,006,441,761 - - 1,006,441,761
- - 7,116,625 7,116,625
- - 1,085,346,774 1,085,346,774
- - 22,068,080 22,068,080
1,006,441,761 7,442,120 1,114,531,479 2,128,415,360
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35. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

ﬁﬁﬂlﬁf\* (nlﬁ)
As at 30 June 2021

Financial Liabilities

TRAE

Secured Loan

Lease Liabilities HEAE

Financial Liabilities included in

Accounts Payable and Accruals

BEHFER

SFARMRSRRREANERAE

202196 A30H

Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost

D SERAsTEZ
SEAE

HKS &7t
27,431,326

348,492

102,711,261

130,491,079

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

MsEEEEBERBER

The University’s principal financial instruments
comprise secured loan, cash and time deposits, unit
trusts and equity investments. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
University’s operations. The University has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable and payable, which arise directly from
its operations. The University does not issue any
financial instruments and derivatives. In addition,
the University does not hold any derivatives.

The University is exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including interest rate risk,
currency risk, and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk in the normal course of activities.
The Council reviewed and approved policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below:

ARENTESHTAREERFEER B
NEBER - BAETESLERIRE - s_ﬁt
TRIENTFEZEEERARENEEM
,éf c ARBMERECMEERAE - TFﬁ%B
RREBRABREERES BN KL ERMIRK
%L o ARBWARBETEMNSBEITETE © &
b2 AREBWARFAEEMHTETA -

AREREEBIET IS M EE S BER

SrAEMSER (BENEXEAR - &% ER kAR

RERER)  EERRMRBIERR - RE
e RAzg T RBOR LAEE@HI pul= eIl



36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MK EREEBRRBEE (&)
Market Risks
(@) Interest Rate Risk

The University’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rate relates primarily to the
University’s time deposits in banks and secured loan
from the Government. The deposits in banks earned
interests at fixed rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between 7 days to 365 days
depending on the cash flow requirements of the
University. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of the secured loan are disclosed in Note 21 to the
financial statements. The risk of changes in market
interest rates are not expected to have a significant
impact on the results of the University as the time
deposits are at fixed rates and other cash and bank
balances are kept in current account. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

Interest Rate Profile

The following table details the interest rates analysis
for evaluation of the interest rate risk:

s AR
(a) FI=@E B

ARBEEOTIHN RS R ERREAKN
SHRTERFRREERNBFER - A&
ReRERE  SUERFR 8N+
REZANTRERZE - MAERERNTIR
EEEANBGEFCRIERRM E21 WE -
AE BFRMKREE MEMRE RIRITERT
MRNERIRSE - RETISHERE(CHENAKE
MM BIRRTBEDRBERTE M RKRAE
BURE DT

M AR

TR RDITRMEF KRB

2022 2021

Annual Effective
Interest Rate

BERFERE
% B2
Financial Assets THEE
Fixed Rate Financial BENEE/MERE
Assets
- Time Deposits with - REIEBER
Original Maturity of —FHEHFHR 0.29%t03.29%
less than One Year ( BIEE 18 (a))
(Note 18 (a))
Financial Liabilities EHEE
No-gain-no-loss Rate TERTER =
Financial Liabilities TRAE
- Secured Loan (Note 21) -BHEAER 1.270%
(BIEE 21)

2021/22 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT e Bi#%#RkeE

Annual Effective
Interest Rate

BRERR
HKS$ BT % BDE HKS$ &7t
0.10% to 0.86%

1,247,278,643
1,247,278,643

27,431,326

27,431,326

1.106% to 1.270%

1,096,833,895
1,096,833,895

27,431,326

27,431,326
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

BRRREERFERBCR (H)

Market Risks (continued)

(b) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The University’s currency risk arises mainly from
the accounts payable, receivable, time-deposits in
banks, equity investments and financial assets at
fair value denominated in foreign currencies. The
management conducted periodical review of the
currency risk exposure and would consider currency
hedging should the need arise.

Significant carrying amounts of the University’s
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at 30 June were analysed in the
table below:

Financial Assets

iz R (&)
(b) E¥EE

TR TANRAEEIRKNE D REREZI
FEE & = B2 b oM B P EE A )RR BN B B
[ o AABNEBRARETZRNINEREN - &
WHRSK - SRITEMEHR - AREEERSEREN
TREE - BIEETHRRAIINERRE
E - BERAZEEBERNRS -

K6 A30HKE  RRET2NINECREEN
BESTNTE

Financial Liabilities

CWMEE cHEes
2022 2021 2022 2021
Currency g% HK$' m HK$ m HK$ m HK$ m
BEBET BEBT BEBRT BEBT
United States Dollar E 114 13.6 1.0 0.3
11.4 13.6 1.0 0.3

Sensitivity analysis on fluctuation of foreign
currencies is not disclosed due to the HK-US
dollar peg and insignificant holding on other
foreign currencies, the Council anticipated that the
fluctuation in other foreign currencies will have no
significant impact on the financial position of the
University.

MBI RET IS - MRS EERA
ARG - EEG RN ERE R MR
ARENHBRAMEAE - FRFAR
B R B U AT -



36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

BsEREERERBER (&)

Market Risks (continued)

(c) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of change
in equity market prices. The University is exposed
to equity price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities and unit trust fund, which represents
the potential loss of the investments the University
might suffer through holding market position in
the face of price movement. The Investment Sub-
committee performs periodic evaluation of the
investment portfolio in order to minimize the risk
associated with the investments whilst continuing
to follow the investment objectives.

As at 30 June 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10% in these investment’s fair
value, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease the University’s deficit by HK$86.7 million
(2021: increase surplus by HK$100.6 million).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation. The major
exposures to credit risk of the University’s financial
assets, which comprise accounts receivable, other
receivables, time deposits and cash and bank
balances, arise from default of the counterparty, with
the maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these financial assets at the end of the reporting
period. Time deposits and bank balances are placed
in various reputable financial institutions and there is
no concentration of credit risk. Accounts receivable
include amounts receivable from students, course-
collaborative partners, government agencies and
others. The majority of the students will settle the
fees payable when they become due or after the
receipt of the government grants, loans and/or the
University’s bursaries, credit risk of which is minimal.
Other receivables mainly include sundry debtors. The
ageing analysis of debtors is prepared periodically
for management review to minimize the credit risk.

mhizREK (&)
(c) BEEREKE

M TEMNABEBEERETSEREZSM
KRB FTELENREREIARERR - AASRHE
B MRS LB ETER S REERE
% - AASERREN S BUBEEE - RE /N
HEZEeeEHGLREAS - RIERERR
KAEEIRBERERR -

202256 A30H » RERFAENIRERARE
BIRRR10%  EMEARIE - AASHER
&2 8,670 F BT (2021 - BERIEIN1.006
BHETT) o

EEREE

FREEMTARER - TEITEEMARMM
FEsnER - BREERR - REREER
RBAOAAEERMEE - BREBUIERR - Bt
FEWERSR - EHEH - RIS RIRITHEER
RERTERRZHEFIERSIE - MEARRE
BREERNHRETHSMEENREERE -
ERERLRITERD RN ZABERE
HE R - EERRIL TSRS - BUIRTE
REB4A - APRIZKE - BUFEBFI R EM AL
BYRFR o« KEBD BAENB BN R EmAT > =X
WRIBFmBE - ER N/ AR EBE S KAl
SMNBERFK - EERRKRD - M EUIRRE
ZEEMBEEBA - BRERTREDTREE
Hms e EEMARREEERR -
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

BB REREERFERBCR (H)

Credit Risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
University’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end
staging classification. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 30 June 2022

Accounts Receivable* FEYBRFR *

Financial Assets Included in Other =t A EfBFEURBRESR -« Fa1T
Receivable, Prepayments and RRARZESHESREE

Deposits
- Normal** -IEE
- Doubtful** - RER M
Time Deposits with Original REBERR=EABE
Maturity of more than Three R—EMNEEER
Months but less than One Year
Not Yet Past Due RIBE
Cash and Cash Equivalents ReRESEEY
Not Yet Past Due RiBHER

EERE (&)

R R F K B R &7

TRARBEERR ZEREREEKNEER
% REREZRIFBMER (BRIFEMER
BARETBERALE AR ER) RFER
BEEREI D FERIBIE - FF2IIMESRASMBFEE

ZHERmEARE -

H202296 A30H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month ECLs 2 HITEHA
12 {8 A FE A EEEE
EEEE Simplified
Stage 1 Approach

e feA

HKS$ &t HK$ %t

- 12,430,011

2,165,229 -

1,246,190,587 -

15,155,108 -

Total
R
HK$ &7t

12,430,011

2,165,229

1,246,190,587

15,155,108
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MsEREERERBER (&)

Credit Risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 30 June 2021

FEUBRSR *

Accounts Receivable®

Financial Assets Included in Other &t A EfFEURBESR - FA1S
BRRREEHNESRERE

Receivable, Prepayments and

Deposits
- Normal** SIEE
- Doubtful** - RER

Time Deposits with Original
R—FHERFR

Maturity of more than Three
Months but less than One Year

Not Yet Past Due KRB
Cash and Cash Equivalents ReRBESEEY
Not Yet Past Due RiBHA

* For accounts receivable to which the University applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 17.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

FREHERR=EAEE

1,085,346,774 -

EERE (&)
BRAREBRFRERE D (&

7202146 A30H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month ECLs 2 HITEHA
12 B A TEH EEEBE
FEEE Simplified

Stage 1 Approach Total

B R 1 k% @t

HK$ &t HK$ 77T HKS$ BT

- 9,719,203 9,719,203

1,384,606 - 1,384,606

1,085,346,774

22,068,080 - 22,068,080

* RBZRURFERBICREE - EREHERZ
BRI 7 REE -

HEIAEMBYEIR BNRBERREZEREEN
FEREAZEGAAIER ] BELEeREERBHR

me BRI SRMEENEEERRAS [REK] -
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

HMREREEEERBE (&)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The University’s objective
is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through use of secured loan
for its operations and development. The University’s
investments are kept sufficiently liquid and the liquid
assets are maintained at a level which is considered
by the management to be adequate to meet the
needs of operations and the expected cash outflow
requirement. The liquidity of the University is closely
monitored by the Council on an ongoing basis.

The financial liabilities as at 30 June together with
the anticipated interest payments over the entire
repayment period of the Government Loan as
disclosed in Note 21 are analysed into relevant
maturity time bands based upon their contractual
maturity dates in the table below:

MmENE R

EMBEIYE - RERAELBEEBEMAS
R - BRRBEAR - NAXERFENE
HFFEBBELBITERAEMRETNEE
KER - {EMAEMERERGFE - ARBHIR
BAHBRARBN  EREETHRSHEEN
HEFFRF - aZ/KTF R IARER B & & A NTE
HNRERHNFBEHRE -NESTHETER
AREHBRSRIIE

MR6A30BEME/EEERBENE21FT#H
BENRAEREREERPATETNFEL
IR ERIFHBE ST ¢

In less than One Year

In more than One Year but not more than
Two Years

In more than Two Years but not more than
Three Years

In more than Three Years but not more than
Four Years

In more than Four Years but not more than
Five Years

In more than Five Years

BR—F
RR—FEER=F

ER—FEER=E

RR=FEENRIF

RREFERRESF
RARF

2022 2021
HK$ 7T HK$ &7t
96,618,738 102,758,046
1,597,761 7,233,211
8,809,757 7,319,118
8,762,554 7,032,023
8,675,459 6,952,131
8,321,661 70,000
132,785,930 131,364,529




37. Fair Value
NREE

As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amounts of
the University’s financial assets and liabilities
approximated to their fair values due to their short
term repayment nature, except for investments and
secured loan repayable after one year.

The fair value of the secured loan repayable after
one year has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The University’s
own non-performance risk for the secured loan
repayable after one year as at 30 June 2022 was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amount
of the University’s secured loan repayable after one
year approximated to its fair value.

Investments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted price in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

BICEINBIRIR —FREEBNEFRIN K
AENcHEENEBEBREHERHILE -
HEEEMN2022F6 A0 HFHEENAEE
B

BBz —FREENERNRAABERLRR
BRI SMERTE - FMIREREAEKR - 58
FElfer TEIHAR AT A - 202256
A30R AREBAGEBREEM 2 —FEE
BNERNTRITRBRETHATEKN « AKX
ENEER s —FREENEFRABRLIA
AEEEE -

B’E

AWRABEMESBRTARARBELRSID
e

A HREEXABRERMISANZH

=

F_FRTERTEEREZIN - E
EXBEZBAEN AR (AIHI5RE)KHE
& (AMEERITE) B -

F_H - BEMAGBZBANELRBHEBAMS
BRRAIHERE -
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37. Fair Value (continued)
NREEGE)

Investments (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Financial Assets at Fair Value A RBEFTAKZRE

through Profit or Loss tREE
- Listed Equity Investments - PhERRE
- Listed Investment Funds -IHESRE

- Unlisted Investment Funds - FEHESKRE
Equity Investments Designated 3EE&MUAREE
at Fair Value through Other FAZEKEER

Comprehensive Income ZERRE

- Unlisted Equity Investments - 3¥ E iR RE

As at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets at Fair Value WA REE AKZRMN

through Profit or Loss EREE
- Listed Equity Investments - EHRERRE
- Listed Investment Funds -IHEERE

- Unlisted Investment Funds - kL mEE£RE
Equity Investments Designated I§E&UAR(E
at Fair Value through Other FAZEKEEK

Comprehensive Income ZERKRE

- Unlisted Equity Investments - JF LR IRE

R2022%6 B30 H

20216 B30 A

’E (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- £ E=iR @3t
HK$ &7t HKS &7t HKS 7t HKS &7t
21,198,665 - - 21,198,665
102,275,920 - - 102,275,920
- 743,587,749 - 743,587,749
- - 6,243,718 6,243,718
123,474,585 743,587,749 6,243,718 873,306,052
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-% F=® =& #st
HK$ BT HK$ & HKS$ B HKS 7t
22,647,882 - - 22,647,882
102,831,920 - - 102,831,920
- 880,961,959 - 880,961,959
- - 7,442,120 7,442,120
125,479,802 880,961,959 7,442,120 1,013,883,881




37. Fair Value (continued)
DNREEGE)

Investments (continued)

There was no transfer between Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the
reporting period.

The level 3 financial instrument includes the
investment in a limited partnership which is not
traded in active markets. Without an observable
market data, it is difficult to analyse a range of
significant unobservable input of the financial
instrument under Level 3 of which its fair value is
estimated on the basis of the investee’s financial
position and results as well as is determined by
using going concern asset-based as valuation
technique.

38. Related Party Transactions
BEELRXS

All transactions relating to purchases of goods
and services, capital projects as well as donations
involving organizations in which members of the
University’s Council may have an interest are
conducted during the normal course of business
and in accordance with the University’s financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures.

All members serve the University Council without
remuneration. Those members who are also
employees of the University received the aggregate
remunerations from their employment contracts as
follows:

Council Member Compensation REGHEHE
Salaries * e
Other Employee Benefits * Hit{gEBH *

* This sum has been included in the “Staff Costs and
Benefits” under the Expenditure heading in Note 11.

®E (&)

HAREBEIBRFINE - F_FRFE=
A2 R g 2 o

F-FREMT AV IFNIBERTHABRHRE
REABKRE - IR UEFEMTELRERED
SER > HERTABRBAENSEEREAD
M REREERMKBERRE QRO
REBELELASERLE REEERNME
AT mEsE

PIEBERBEEM - R - E221EE KRB
BRRBREGK B K EZFALTENEEER
B2 X5  SAEERKEFELDIRRA
SRR A R EERBREFHET -

FIEREGXEHERAREZKE HH MK
BRI - —LEREK B RKtEEREN
EE - tFIRERE B & L ATIE A SN e 42 58
=2

2022 2021

HK$ &7t HKS %7t

19,512,606 16,567,688

4,846,304 4,194,770

24,358,910 20,762,458

* EERIEDHEII AN 1180 U B HBE R
2T o
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38. Related Party Transactions (continued)

BERRS (&)

Other than the employment contracts mentioned
above, the University has not entered into any
contract of significance for the provision of goods
and services with any Council member during the
year.

39. Taxation

BiiE

The University is an approved charitable institution
which is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap. 112).

40. Approval of the Financial Statements

BRI R

The financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Council on 17 October
2022.

BT LiMEEAY  KERAFERILRE
BT R E K B 2[R i A RIS HY
EREH -

RRKEBT —Fiz 2 BEHE - RIBEEBHE
&0 (BBENE 1125 ) FE8SIFIER RS
FRI8 -

WMEBEBER2022F 10 A17THX ERIRER T
REFFERE ©






www.LN.edu.hk

Liberal Arts Education « Transformation For Life

(L2 S = A Rl

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources
FSC

wwiscorg  FSC™ C004888




	COVER 封面
	CONTENTS 目錄
	TREASURER’S REPORT 司庫報告
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 獨立核數師報告
	STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 收支表
	STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 全面收益表
	STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 財務狀況表
	STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 現金流量表
	STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 資金結餘變動表
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 財務報表附註
	BACK COVER 封底



